
Summons to Meeting

Tuesday 13 August 2019

Licensing Panel
Wednesday 21 August 2019, 10.00 am

Cumberland Suite, Market Hall, Church Road, Wigton, 
CA7 9AA
Membership:

Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger
Councillor Peter Kendall

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Election of Chair  

To elect a Chair for the ensuing meeting.

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  (Pages 1 - 24)

Procedure at Licensing Panel  (Pages 25 - 26)



Monitoring Officer

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 30 August 2019, 3.30 pm
Allerdale House, Workington



Allerdale Borough Council

Licensing Panel – 21 August 2019

To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises 
licence 

The Reason for the Decision To consider representations received in relation 
to an application for a premises licence under 
section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003.

Summary of options considered 1) Grant the licence subject to—

(i) the conditions mentioned modified to such 
extent as the authority considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and

(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 
or 21 be included in the licence;

2) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of 
the licensable activities to which the application 
relates;

3) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the 
premises supervisor;

4) Reject the application.

Recommendations The Panel should consider all the information 
contained in the report. They should make a 
decision from the options available in paragraph 
5.2 taking into account information received from 
the applicant, interested parties and any relevant 
legislation or guidance. 

Financial /  Resource Implications None

Legal / Governance Implications There is a right of Appeal against the Licensing 
Panel’s decision to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days 

Community Safety Implications Promotion of the crime and disorder objective.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

No

Wards Affected Silloth and Solway Coast Ward

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

N/a

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor John Cook  

Lead Officer Deborah Fletcher
Licensing & Compliance Officer 
Tel: 0303 123 1702
Email: deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications (Please delete where applicable).

Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal Y Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety Y

Background papers:

None

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 This report concerns an application for a premises licence for Land at Holly 
House, Goodyhills, Mawbray, CA15 6QX. The applicant is Solfest Limited. 

1.2 Representations were received against the application and they must be 
considered in line with section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act).

2.0 Application

2.1 Solfest Limited have applied for a premises licence with the following 
description:

That of a music festival running over the bank holiday weekend and consistent 
to the previously approved licence for Solfest. The licence is to move the 
premises across the road.  

Page 2

mailto:deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk


The festival site is comprised of camping (land at North Lakes Country Park) 
and the arena field (Land at Holly House, Goodyhills) where the sale of 
alcohol from designated on site bars, the playing of applied music, and, 
generally, all the licensable activities below will be done. 

2.2 The licence has been applied for no more than 4,999 people. Site plans have 
been provided and can be found at Appendix A.   

2.3 The application is for the following times and activities:

Plays, Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance and 
Supply of Alcohol 

Monday 00:00 – 04:00
Thursday 12:00 – 23:59 (with the exception of plays and films)
Friday 12:00 – 23:59
Saturday 00:00 – 23:59
Sunday 00:00 – 23:59

Late Night Refreshment 

Monday 00:00 – 04:00
Thursday 23:00 – 23:59 
Friday 23:00 – 23:59
Saturday 23:00 – 23:59
Sunday 23:00 – 23:59

2.4 The designated premises supervisor would be Simon Kay.  

2.5 The applicant has put forward the same conditions that have previously been 
attached to a premises licence for the festival mentioned in the application 
description. They can be found at Appendix B. 

2.6 The application was initially put forward as an indefinite licence. Due to the 
way the licence was advertised the application is now only for the 2019 event. 

2.7 Documentation has been provided by the event organisers and will be 
available to view at the hearing:

Management Flow Chart
Alcohol Management Plan
Full Site Risk Assessment
Contractors Pack and Site Rules
Road Traffic Management Plan
Major Incident and Contingency Plan
Security Management Plan
Fire Risk Assessment
Young People and Vulnerable Adults Plan
Noise Management Plan

Page 3



Temporary Structures and Wind Management Plan

3.0 Key Points for consideration

3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 has four licensing objectives – 

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection from harm. 

3.3 The application process includes circulating the application to all the 
responsible authorities. It also includes advertising the application in the local 
press and a notice on the premises. This is to allow for representations to be 
made for or against the application. Representations should be about the 
likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the 
licensing objectives. 

3.4 The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to consider any representations 
made unless all parties agree that a hearing isn’t necessary. It is considered 
necessary to hold a hearing to consider the representations in this case. 

3.6 The Allerdale Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021 section 7.1 states that, 
when considering applications, the Panel should have regard to the Act and 
its objectives, Government guidance, supporting regulations, representations, 
duties and obligations under other legislation and the statement of Licensing 
Policy.

3.7 Paragraph 7.2 of the Policy states that an application should be considered on 
its individual merits. 

3.8 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
provides advice on considering if a representation is relevant. It recommends 
in borderline cases the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of a 
representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 
subsequent hearing will provide an opportunity for the person making the 
representation to amplify and clarify it. 

4.0 Representations and responses 

4.1 Cumbria Constabulary and Environmental Health responded to the application 
to say they required a Safety Advisory Group meeting with the applicants. 
This took place on 17 July 2019. Discussions took place which meant they 
were happy with the content of the application. Work is ongoing with the 
organisers to ensure that the paperwork mentioned in the application is 
satisfactory. 

4.2 Seven representations have been received against the application. They are 
as follows:

Page 4



Representation 
Number

Date 
received

Details of 
representation

Mediation to date

IP01 08/07/19 Proximity of festival 
to property.

Potential impact on 
young family living 
at the property.
 

Significant change 
in local living 
arrangements.

Confirmation of 
Police presence 
on site. 

Confirmed 200m 
distance between 
nearest 
properties at 
festival site. 

IP02 14/07/19 Proximity of festival 
to property.

Trespass on land.

Public footpath 
running over 
festival site. 

Traffic concerns on 
country lanes.

Issues with festival 
on previous site. 

Requested licence 
be limited to a 
number of festival a 
year. 

Mediation as 
above.

Public footpath 
will be fenced off.

Traffic 
management 
plan agreed with 
Cumbria County 
Council. 

The application is 
only for the 2019 
festival.

IP03 15/07/19 Traffic concerns. 

Issues with festival 
on previous site. 
Public nuisance, 
crime and disorder. 

No natural sound 
barriers. 

Public access to the 
Tarn. 

Alcohol promotions. 

Mediation as 
above. 

Noise 
Management 
Plan agreed with 
Environmental 
Health. 

Tarn to be 
fenced off. 

All promotions to 

Page 5



be managed so 
as to promote the 
objectives. 

IP04 16/07/19 Traffic concerns. Mediation as 
above.

IP05 17/07/19 Traffic concerns. Mediation as 
above.

IP06 29/07/19 Traffic concerns.

Traffic issues with 
festival on previous 
site. 
 

Mediation as 
above.

IP07 29/07/19 Traffic concerns. 

Traffic issues with 
festival on previous 
site. 

Mediation as 
above.

4.3 The date of representation is given as the first time the interested party made 
a representation. There have been mediation efforts with all parties so further 
correspondence has been received and is summarised in the details of 
representation. Mediation will continue up until the beginning of the meeting.

4.4 All representation documentation will be available at the hearing.

4.5 One additional representation was made but it has not been classed as a 
relevant representation. It was made by a person who had previously worked 
for the applicant and has been dealt with as a complaint and not a relevant 
representation. 

5.0 Options available to the Licensing Panel 

5.1 The Panel must consider the representations and take such steps as it 
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

5.2 The steps available are:

a) Grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory condition. 

b) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 
the application relates;

c) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor

d) Reject the application

Page 6



5.3 The Licensing Panel should give reasons for its decision.

6.0 Recommendations

6.1 The Panel should consider all the information contained in the report. They 
should make a decision from the options available in paragraph 5.2 taking into 
account information received from the applicant, interested parties and any 
relevant legislation or guidance. 

7.0 Appeal 

7.1 If any person party to the hearing is aggrieved by the decision of the Council 
they will have a right of appeal to a magistrates’ court within 21 days. 

Deborah Fletcher
Licensing and Compliance Officer

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

 

Conditions 1, 2, 12 and 13 - REMOVED BY VARIATION TO PREMISES LICENCE ON 26 March 2016.

 

  3.

A suitable electrical certificate signed by a competent person stating that any electrical installations 
used for regulated entertainment have been inspected and tested and are in a safe working 
condition shall be available on site for inspection by an authorised officer of the licensing authority.

 

  4.

The copies of electrical certificates shall include:

 

(a)

the earthing of generators,

(b)

the power supply and installation, and

(c)

the lighting circuit and equipment.

 

  5.

Each socket outlet circuit or individual socket outlets used for public entertainment shall be 
protected by an integral residual current device (RCD) having a rated residual operating current not 
exceeding 30mA (0.03amps). Every such circuit and RCD shall be inspected and tested annually by a 
competent person. A satisfactory and valid inspection report shall be available on site for inspection 
by an authorised officer of the licensing authority.

 

  6.

The event organiser shall ensure all marquees, lighting rigs and other temporary structures are 
erected and dismantled in a safe manner by a competent person and maintained in a safe condition 
for the duration of the event.

 

  7.

Based on a 50/50 split (male/female), the minimum toilet provision for the event must be:-

 

Page 11



                            Female:               1 WC per 100 females

 

                            Male:               1 WC per 500 males

 

                            1 urinal per 150 males

 

  8.

Adequate and suitable toilet facilities shall be provided for the use of disabled individuals.

 

  9.

The conveniences shall be indicated by suitable signage and properly and be efficiently lit at all 
times.

 

10.

The conveniences shall be kept at all times in good order and repair and properly and effectively 
cleansed and maintained throughout the duration of the event.

 

11.

Any livestock should be removed from the fields, used for the event at least three weeks prior to the 
event to minimise the risk of E.coli bacteria being present on the land.

 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH BY VARIATION ON 26 MARCH 
2016.

 

14.

The site must be laid out in such a way as to minimize the interaction of vehicles and pedestrians. 
Where vehicles are in the same area as pedestrians at the same time a workplace traffic risk 
assessment must be carried out and implemented.

15.

The audience should not be allowed within 3m of any loud speaker. Where this is not practical and 
suitable, the overall music sound levels can be modified so that people closer than 3m to the loud 
speakers are not exposed to an Event Leq of more than 107dBA or peak sound pressure levels of 
120dB. Under no circumstances should the audience and loudspeaker separation distance be less 
than 1m.

Page 12



 

16.

Wash hand basins should be provided at a ratio of one per ten toilets. Wash hand basins should be 
provided with soap and running water, where possible hot and cold or suitably mixed water should 
be provided. 

 

17.

A Noise Management Plan must be submitted to Environmental Health at least 16 weeks prior to the 
first day of the event and agreed at least 12 weeks prior to the first day of the event. This must 
include all steps to be taken to manage noise pollution, number of stages, location, orientation and 
operational times of each stage. It should also include details of the sound system being used, noise 
predictions to assess noise levels at noise sensitive properties surrounding the event site and details 
of sound control and monitoring scheme that will be put in place to minimise noise levels to achieve 
compliance with the conditions of this licence.

 

18.

The licensee shall appoint a suitably qualified and experienced noise control consultant, who shall 
liaise between all parties including the licensee/promoter, sound system supplier, sound engineer 
and the licensing authority on all matters relating to noise control.

 

19.

The noise control consultant shall have full control over the sound amplification equipment and the 
volume shall be adjusted according to the requirements of Environmental Health.

 

20.

At least two weeks prior to each Event a letter shall be circulated to local residents within a 2000 
metre radius of the licensed premises detailing the start and finish times of the Event and the time(s) 
of any sound checks, and a dedicated telephone number for noise complaints.

 

21.

Noise measurements outside of the site shall be taken as the noise consultant considers necessary 
and in response to any complaints received. Noise levels resulting from each Event shall not exceed 
an agreed level between Environmental Health and the Premises Licence Holder.

 

22.

The Event Co-ordinators shall ensure that they have sufficient competent staff to allow for proactive 
and reactive monitoring of noise levels to take place at noise sensitive premises around the site. In 

Page 13



the case of multiple noise complaints, this will ensure that they are able to address the complaints in 
a timely and efficient manner.

 

 CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH OPERATING SCHEDULE

 

CONDITIONS 1-14 REMOVED BY VARIATION TO PREMISES LICENCE ON 26 MARCH 2016

 

15.

The event is managed to the satisfaction of the responsible authorities & Event Safety Group (ESG).

 

              Solfest will develop a safe and effective Event Management Plan (EMP) to be submitted to 
the ESG and responsible authorities at least 16 weeks prior to the event and approved 12 weeks 
prior to the event. 

 

The Premises Licence Holder will meet with the ESG and responsible authorities as required to 
ensure that a safe and effective management plan/health and safety risk assessment are developed.  
Consideration will be given at all times to the recommendations contained within the Event Safety 
Guide (HSG195) and those decisions made by the EAG.

 

              The premises licence holder will comply with the EMP submitted to and approved by the 
licensing authority, no changes will be made without prior written consent from the licensing 
authority, necessary operational changes may be made during the event to improve safety.

              Throughout the event, all officials or responsible authorities will be granted unrestricted 
access to all areas of the site for the purpose of enforcing any relevant statutory provisions relating 
to crime and disorder, public health, environmental protection and the health, safety and welfare of 
all persons present.

 

              The plan will contain detailed proposals for the event to promote all the licensing objectives 
of public safety, prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance and protection of 
children from harm. 

 

              The EMP will encompass the following documentation and where necessary the premises 
licence holder will implement any other requirements made by the ESG

 

(a)

Alcohol management Plan

Page 14



(b)

Campsite management plan

(c)

Command, control and communications plan

(d)

Crime prevention plan that will encompass an events drug policy

(e)

Crowd management plan

(f)

Fire safety management plan

(g)

Major incident plan

(h)

Medical and welfare plan

(i)

Noise management plan

(j)

Security and stewarding operational plan

(k)

Sanitation facilities plan

(l)

A ticket and entry policy

(m)

Traffic management plan

(n)

Trader information management plan

(o)

A waste management plan

(p)

A water supply plan

(q)

Page 15



A child protection policy

 

16.

The premises licence holder or representatives of Solfest Ltd or their nominated deputies will be 
present on site at all times the site is open to ticket holders.

 

17.

The DPS or nominated personal licence holder will be present on site when alcohol is being sold.

 

18.

All door supervisors will display their SIA badge, be in radio communication and wear high visibility 
clothing where appropriate or a marked uniform. 

 

19.

SIA security staff and Stewards will patrol all clearly marked public areas 24 hours a day.

 

20.

SIA security staff will carry our random searches for drugs, weapons or other prohibited items as laid 
out in ticket conditions.

 

21.

A secure perimeter fence will be erected prior to the admittance of ticket holders to the site in 
consultation with the relevant authorities.

 

22.

All public areas will be adequately lit.

 

23.

The number of SIA security operatives and stewards will be in accordance with the security and 
stewarding operational plan.

 

24.

Page 16



All entrances to the arena will display signage indicating, searches will take place and no glass will be 
taken into the arena by the public. 

 

25.

Suitable bins and drugs amnesty boxes will be in place next to entrances to the arena. Access keys to 
amnesty boxes will be in the possession of Cumbria Constabulary.

 

26.

Glass containers will not be available from any bar.

 

27.

Traffic management plan must ensure the safe interaction of pedestrians and vehicles. Where 
vehicles are moving in the same area as pedestrians at the same time a work place traffic risk 
assessment will be carried out and implemented.

 

28.

The audience should not be allowed within 3m of any on stage loud speaker while in operation, 
where this is not practical or suitable evidence of justification will be provided. The overall music 
sound level can be modified so that people closer than 3m are not exposed to an Event Leq of more 
than 107db or peak sounds of 120db. Under no circumstances should audience and loud speaker 
separation be less than 1m.

29.

A risk assessment of medical provision in line with the relevant guidelines will be conducted and 
made available to Public Health and the Licensing Authority. Suitable and sufficient medical 
provision will be provided in line with the risk assessment.

30.

A noise control plan will be submitted to Environmental Health (to be included within the EMP to be 
submitted 16 weeks prior to the event). This will include all steps to be taken to manage noise 
pollution, number of stages, their location, orientation and operational times of each stage. It should 
also include details of sound systems being used, noise prediction to asses noise levels at noise 
sensitive properties surrounding the event site. Details of sound control and monitoring scheme that 
will be put into place to achieve compliance of the conditions. 

 

31.

The DPS will ensure all bars prominently display Challenge 21 notices. 

 

Page 17



32.

The DPS or a nominated personal licence holder will provide training to all staff preventing sales to 
persons under 18 or those who appear intoxicated.

 

33.

Soft drinks and free drinking water shall be available on site at all times.

 

 CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY LICENSING PANEL  AT A REVIEW HEARING ON 30 AUGUST 2017

 

1. 

To modify the conditions of licence as follows:

 

a.

To require that no licensable activity can be carried out until such time as an application to transfer 
the premises licence to a professional event management company is received and approved. Such 
application to be received within 2 months.

 

b.

A de-brief meeting of the Event Advisory Group takes place within one month of the event each 
year.

 

2. 

To remove the designated premises supervisor

 

 ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH OPERATING SCHEDULE BY MINOR 
VARIATION ON 6 JUNE 2018

 

1.

The site perimeter will be protected by double heras type fencing with a cleared zone in between at 
all the agreed vulnerable areas of the event site.

2.

The Licence Holder will provide at least twenty weeks prior to the first day of the event to the 
Licensing Authority and other responsible authorities a copy of the Event Site Plan and the Event 
Safety Plan including the operational management structure for the event, setting out the key role 

Page 18



and responsibilities of the various duty holders including identifying who has overall responsibility 
for complying with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974. The information provided will also 
include all the site risk assessments for the event in line with the purple guide. 

3.

A professional event security team will be appointed and supported by a stewarding company. The 
operation will be overseen by the Event Director and Head of Security who will liaise regularly with 
Cumbria Constabulary in the lead up to the event.

4.

Conditions of entry will be advertised on the event website, issued with tickets and clearly displayed 
at all entrances to the site. It must be clearly stated that all persons may be subject to search on 
entry for prohibited items that must all be clearly listed.

5.

The level of professional security personnel, approved in relation to each event by the Licensing 
Authority, will have a designated responsibility to maintain a safe environment for members of the 
public attending the event. SIA registered supervisors will be positioned at entrance gates, bars, and 
stages and will patrol during each event. Additional stewarding staff will provide support, monitoring 
other areas and patrolling the event. All staff will be encouraged to be vigilant , identify suspicious 
behavior and take appropriate action in the prevention of crime and disorder. Any ejection from the 
premises will be done in line with the policy agreed with Cumbria Constabulary.

6.

At all times when the premises are open to the public the Event Director shall be aware of the 
number of persons on the premises and shall, if requested, give this information to an authorized 
officer of the council, a Fire Officer or a Police Officer.

7.

The Event Director will keep a record of all incidents relating to entry, disruptive behavior and 
controlled weapons and substances. The incident records will be available to view by any relevant 
authority.

8.

An Alcohol Management Plan will be submitted for Approval by the Licensing Authority/Police 
twenty weeks prior to the first day of the event.

9.

The DPS will keep a record of all incidents occurring in relation to the bars and sale of alcohol on site. 
This record must be made available for inspection by the Licensing Authority and the Police.

10.

Bar staff must be trained to recognize drunkenness and those under the influence of drugs and 
refuse service to customers who have consumed excessive alcohol and will be trained to handle 
potential troublemakers and diffuse difficult situations.

11.

Page 19



SIA Security staff will be briefed to be on the lookout for minors consuming alcohol. Notices will be 
clearly displayed at bars indicating that it is unlawful for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for 
another person to purchase alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of age.

12.

A zero tolerance drugs policy will be operated. Details of the Policy will be agreed with Cumbria 
Constabulary and submitted for approval twenty weeks prior to the first day of the event. 

13.

The Licence holder must appoint a suitably competent and appropriately qualified persons and 
experienced in the nature of Music Events to co-ordinate the Management of Health & Safety. Any 
such persons should be involved with, and available to, officers of the council and site employees 
during the pre-event planning, site build, throughout the duration of the event and during the site 
de-rig and clearance. The Solfest site from day 1 of construction to the final point of de-rig will 
become a “Build and Break” site and all persons entering the site will be suitably dressed in 
protective clothing to include high visibility clothing, hard hats, protective boots, ear defenders, 
protective glasses and gloves.

14.

The appointed Health & Safety Officer will ensure that all persons entering the event site during the 
build phase of the event receives a Health & Safety briefing relevant to the Solfest Site. 

15.

The appointed Health & Safety Officer will ensure that access to the site for members of the public is 
denied at all times during the “Build and Break” phases of the event.

16.

The Licence Holder shall prepare an Emergency Plan to respond to all possible major incidents 
occurring on the site. The plan which shall include evacuation procedures, will be prepared in 
consultation with the emergency services to enable quick and effective action to be implemented by 
the licence holder and the Emergency Services in the event of a major incident. The Emergency Plan 
which must include all emergency services blue routes, R.V.P.’s and forward R.V.P.’s will be 
submitted to the Licensing Authority and other responsible authorities at least twenty weeks prior to 
the event.

17.

The Licence Holder shall ensure that all temporary demountable structures including stages, 
marquees, barriers, grandstands, towers and any other structure listed in the industry guide, 
conform to the Institution of Structural Engineers - “Temporary Demountable Structures - Guidance 
on design, Procurement and Use”.

18.

The Licence Holder must ensure that the design concept statements for marquees and large tents 
include design, wind loads, foundation and anchorage requirements, erection schedule, protection 
to be provided to structural support columns to prevent the public climbing onto them, protection 
to be provided to guy ropes and anchoring stakes in areas likely to experience heavy pedestrian 
traffic.

Page 20



19.

The licence holder must ensure that prior to the public being permitted onto the site a signed 
statement is received in respect of each temporary structure which certifies that they have been 
inspected and where appropriate tested by a competent person following completion and to 
confirm structures have been constructed in accordance with the approved design specifications. 
The Licence Holder must make these statements available to the Licensing Authority on request.

20.

Vehicle movement within the festival site must be managed to ensure that pedestrians are 
appropriately segregated from site vehicles during site build, the event and de-rig. A site vehicle & 
car park plan must be produced with camping and car parking separated and all routes shown that 
vehicles entering the site must use. This plan shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority and other 
responsible Authorities at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event.

21.

All exits, escape routes including external escape routes must be kept free from obstruction at all 
times when the public are on the event site.

22.

St Johns Ambulance or a similar competent organization will have an active presence on site 
throughout the event providing medical support. In addition to an on-site treatment centre staffed 
by Paramedics there will be an ambulance on site to transport emergency patients to hospital. The 
medical contractor will keep records of incidents which will be made available to responsible 
authorities on request. An appropriate level of Medical cover will also be maintained during the 
“Build & Break” phases of the event.

23.

The Licence Holder will consult with Cumbria Fire & Rescue to ensure that fire fighting equipment is 
provided throughout the premises at suitable locations and comply with BS 5306 - Selection and 
installation of portable fire extinguishers or subsequent fire regulations. A fire Safety plan will be 
submitted for approval by Cumbria Fire & Rescue at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement 
of the event.

24.

The Licence Holder will ensure that all Security staff, Stewards, Catering staff and Production staff 
are familiar with the operation of fire fighting equipment.

25.

The Licence Holder will supply at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event a 
water safety plan and a detailed map of the site with the complete water supply/distribution 
network clearly marked.

26.

Traffic Management advice will be sought by a qualified professional in Traffic Management and 
approved by all responsible organizations to develop a traffic management plan to ensure the 
smooth arrival of festival attendees and minimize the disruption to the local area. The Traffic 

Page 21



Management Plan will be submitted to the licensing Authority and other responsible authorities for 
approval at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event.

27.

A Noise Management Plan will be drawn up in consultation with Allerdale Environmental Health and 
submitted at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event for the approval of the 
Licensing Authority and other responsible authorities.

28.

The Licence Holder will produce a dedicated local complaints hotline together with a Complaints 
Management Plan detailing how the Event Management will deal with any local complaints which 
must be submitted for approval twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event for approval 
by the Licensing Authority and all responsible authorities.

29.

The Licence Holder must produce an under 18’s admissions/ticketing and wristband policy which 
must be submitted for approval by the Licensing Authority and responsible authorities at least 
twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event.

30.

A CCTV system shall be installed by Cumbria Police, as a minimum, at entrances and exits and will 
meet the following criteria:- The system will display the date & time on the recording and record 
whenever the premises are open to the public. Any recordings will be kept for a minimum of 28 days 
and will be produced on request to any authorized officer.

31.

A table Top exercise will be held at least 21 days prior to the commencement of the event to ensure 
the testing of all Solfest emergency plans and procedures which must include all responsible 
authorities and be attended by all Solfest Management Staff.

32.

The Licence Holder will produce an effective Command, Control and Communications plan at least 
twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event for approval by the Licensing Authority and 
responsible authorities.

33.

The Licence Holder will set up an Event Control Room to cover the period of the Event and all 
responsible authorities will be invited to have representatives in the Event Control Room throughout 
the duration of the event.

34.

The Licence Holder will provide the names of the following key personnel to the Licensing Authority 
and all responsible authorities at least twenty weeks prior to the commencement of the event:- 
Event Director, Festival Coordinator, Site Manager, Health & Safety Manager, Security Manager. 

 

Page 22



Solfest licence application

Key:

Arena field 

Camping areas

Parking/overspill

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



Allerdale Borough Council

Revised Procedure at Licensing Panel Meetings

April 2014

Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room.

Procedure

Step 1

The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed. 

Step 2

The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the panel.

The Chair invites members of the panel to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application.

Step 3

The Chair invites the applicant or the applicant’s representative to address the 
panel on the merits of their application.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of review 
applications all speakers are permitted an equal amount of time. 

The Chair asks if any member of the panel/officers present have any 
questions to ask the applicant or the applicant’s representative.

Step 4

The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate (if any) to present 
their comments(s).  This may include Councillors who have submitted written 
representations on the application within the requisite timescale.

The Chair asks if any members of the panel have any questions to ask any 
party making representations.

Page 25

Agenda Annex



Step 5

The Chair offers the applicant or the applicant’s representative the final 
opportunity to address the panel.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of a review 
application all speakers will be allowed an equal amount of time. 

Step 6

The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the panel can consider its 
determination. In considering its determination, the panel may seek advice 
from its Legal Adviser. 

Step 7

The parties will be re-called and informed of the Panel’s decision.

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within seven days

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure

All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case.

Page 26


	Agenda
	5 To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix A - Solfest Site Plan
	Appendix B - Solfest Conditions
	Solfest Premises Plan

	 Procedure at Licensing Panel

